
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer 
 
Tel: 01235 422522 
 

 

E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 10 April 2018 
 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 18 APRIL 2018 AT 6.30 PM 
 

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY 
 

Members of the Committee: 

Sandy Lovatt (Chairman) 

Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman) 
Robert Hall 
Jenny Hannaby 
 

Anthony Hayward 
Bob Johnston 
Ben Mabbett 
 

Chris McCarthy 
Catherine Webber 
 

 
Substitutes Councillors 

Yvonne Constance 
Margaret Crick 
Monica Lovatt 

Chris Palmer 
Helen Pighills 
Julia Reynolds 

Emily Smith 
Mike Badcock 
St John Dickson 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

 
 



  2 

 

 
 1 Chairman's announcements   

 
To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters. 

 
 2 Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
 3 Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 28 March 2018.   
 
 4 Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
 5 Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.   
 
 6 Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   

 



  3 

 

 
 

Planning applications 
 

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 
 
 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page. 

 
     
7.  P17/V2502/RM - 

Land at Challow 
Park East 
Challow, 
Wantage. OX12 
9RH   

Reserved Matters Application for 
Access, Appearance, Landscaping, 
Layout and Scale for a Residential 
Development of 38 Dwellings, 
including up to 13 Affordable 
Dwellings, with Associated Car 
Parking and Amenity Space and On-
Site Public Open Space, pursuant to 
outline Planning Permission 
P16/V1714/O. 

P17/V2502/RM 11 - 26 

 

 
 
 
MARGARET REED 

Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018  Pl.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Planning Committee 

held on Wednesday 28 March 2018 at 6.30 pm 
in The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY 
 

 

 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present:  
 
Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), StJohn 
Dickson (as substitute for Anthony Hayward), Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, Bob Johnston, 
Ben Mabbett and Chris McCarthy 
 
Officers: Holly Bates, Steve Culliford and Emily Hamerton  
 
Also present: Councillors Roger Cox and Julia Reynolds  
 
Number of members of the public: 14 

 

 

Pl.161 Chairman's announcements  
 
The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed, and 
advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.   

 

Pl.162 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor Anthony Hayward had sent his apologies for absence and appointed Councillor 
StJohn Dickson as his substitute.   
 
Councillor Catherine Webber had sent her apologies and appointed Councillor Emily Smith 
as her substitute, who had also sent her apologies.     
 

Pl.163 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2018 as a correct 
record and agree that the chairman sign them as such, subject to adding declarations of 
interest from Councillors Bob Johnston and Jenny Hannaby as they knew Mike Gilbert, 
who was an applicant’s agent.   
 

Pl.164 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018  Pl.2 

Pl.165 Urgent business  
 
None 
 

Pl.166 Public participation  
 
The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.   
 

Pl.167 Land South of Park Road, Faringdon  
 
The committee considered a hybrid application P17/V1082/O for the demolition of existing 
buildings/structures and the comprehensive redevelopment of land south of Park Road, 
Faringdon, comprising up to 380 dwellings.  The hybrid application was in two parts: a full 
application for a first phase of 103 dwellings, and an outline application for 277 dwellings.   
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.   
 
Mike Kerton spoke in support of the application. 
 
Roger Cox, one of the local ward councillors, spoke in support to the application.   
 
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that: 

 the section 106 agreement included a contribution to improving health facilities in 
the town  

 the application allocated land for a new school  

 the application complied with the council’s design guide, including side access to 
rear gardens   

 the recommendation for approval of the application included Grampian conditions 
regarding water supply and drainage  

 29 per cent of the new homes would be affordable housing  
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to delegate authority to the head of planning to grant outline consent for 
application P17/V1082/O, subject to: 
 
(a) a section 106 legal agreement being entered into, to ensure financial contributions 

towards local infrastructure and to secure affordable housing; and   
 
(b) Conditions (or provision in S106 as appropriate) as follows: 

 
Full Application  
 
Standard 
1. Commencement three years. 
2. Approved plans. 
 
Pre-commencement 
3. Material details to be agreed. 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018  Pl.3 

4. Boundary treatment details to be agreed (incl. to substation and pumping 
station). 

5. Slab level details to be agreed. 
6. Landscaping details to be agreed (including additional tree planting, tree pit 

details, streetlighting details and a management and maintenance plan). 
7. Tree protection and method statement to be agreed. 
8. Construction environmental management plan for biodiversity (phased). 
9. Water supply infrastructure impact study and connection points to be agreed. 
10. Sustainable surface water drainage scheme to be agreed; no occupation until 

approved scheme in place. 
11. Foul drainage details to be agreed; no occupation until approved scheme in 

place. 
12. Piling method statement to be agreed. 
13. Construction traffic management plan (including dust management plan) to be 

agreed. 
14. Access and visibility splays details to be agreed. 
15. Field access to be closed details to be agreed. 
16. Cycle parking details to be agreed. 
17. Phased contaminated land risk assessment to be agreed. 
18. Scheme of noise mitigation to be agreed. 
 
Pre-occupation 
19. Residential travel plan including residential travel packs to be agreed. 
20. Details of mitigation measures in air quality assessment to be agreed. 
21. Validation report of any previously approved remediation works to be agreed. 
22. Prior to 50th occupation – emergency access onto Sands Hill formed with details 

to be agreed.  
23. School parking and square details to be agreed. 
 
Compliance 
24. Mitigation to be undertaken in accordance with the written scheme of 

investigation. 
25. Landscaping implementation.  
26. Hours of construction work.  
27. Turning and parking areas to be provided. 
28. Garages to be retained for parking purposes.  
 
Outline consent 
 
Standard 
1. Commencement two years after reserved matters approval. 
2. Reserved matters to be submitted.  
3. Approved plans list. 
 
Pre-commencement 
4. Construction environmental management plan for biodiversity (phased) to be 

agreed. 
5. Phased contaminated land risk assessment to be agreed. 
6. Foul water drainage details to be agreed. 
7. Water supply infrastructure impact study and connection points to be agreed. 
8. Foul drainage details to be agreed; no occupation until approved scheme in 

place. 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018  Pl.4 

9. Sustainable surface water drainage scheme to be agreed; no occupation until 
approved scheme in place. 

10. Piling method statement to be agreed. 
11. Tree protection and method statement to be agreed. 
12. Construction traffic management plan (including dust management plan) to be 

submitted. 
 
With reserved matters 
13. Biodiversity enhancement plan to be agreed. 
14. Slab level details to be agreed. 
 
Pre-occupation 
15. Details of mitigation measures in air quality assessment to be agreed. 
16. Validation report of any previously approved remediation works to be agreed. 
17. Scheme of noise mitigation to be agreed.  
18. Travel plan prior to occupation of the extra care housing. 
 
Compliance 
19. Hours of construction work. 
20. Mitigation to be undertaken in accordance with the written scheme of 

investigation. 
 

Pl.168 Former King Alfred School, East Springfield Road, Wantage  
 
The committee considered application P17/V2479/RM, which sought approval of the 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the residential development of the former 
King Alfred School site at Springfield Road, Wantage.   
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.   
 
Officer update: the mini roundabout at the junction of Springfield Road/Charlton road had 
been secured by the outline consent and a section 278 highways agreement.  The open 
space near the north-western corner of the site would have a dual-use function as an 
attenuation basin and a public open space, but that this would only be a 1 in 30 years 
storm event and so would be useable as public open space most of the time.   
 
Julia Reynolds, a representative of Wantage Town Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.   
 
Warren Brown, Bernard Connolly and Gary Madgwick spoke in objection to the 
application.   
 
Mike Robinson spoke in support of the application. 
 
StJohn Dickson, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.   
 
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that: 

 the county council had no objections to the application from a highway perspective   

 there was sufficient space for visitors to parking on-street  

 the spaces between the proposed dwellings and the existing houses surrounding 
the site complied with the council’s design guide  

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018  Pl.5 

 it was not unusual to have parking next to neighbouring properties  
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application was declared carried on being put 
to the vote.   
 
RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P17/V2479/RM to: 
(i) seek amendments to the layout to address the relationship with 36 Fyfield Close;  
(ii) query with Oxfordshire County Council the visitor parking requirements; and   
(iii) allow the committee members to visit the site.   
 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.30 pm 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

 

APPLICATION NO. P17/V2502/RM 
APPLICATION TYPE RESERVED MATTERS 
REGISTERED 20.9.2017 
PARISH EAST CHALLOW 
WARD MEMBER(S) Yvonne Constance 
APPLICANT Mr Andrew Smith 
SITE Land at Challow Park East Challow, Wantage. 

OX12 9RH 
PROPOSAL Reserved Matters Application for Access, 

Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale for a 
Residential Development of 38 Dwellings, including 
up to 13 Affordable Dwellings, with Associated Car 
Parking and Amenity Space and On-Site Public 
Open Space, pursuant to outline Planning 
Permission P16/V1714/O 

OFFICER Adrian Butler 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that reserved matters be approved subject to 
conditions summarised as follows:  

 
1. Approved plans 
2. Materials to be agreed before work above slab level 
3. Landscaping to be agreed 
4. Landscaping implementation 
5. Tree protection 
6. Arboricultural method statement for works in the root area of a 

beech tree 
7. Acoustic measures to be implemented 
8. Road surfacing 
9. Parking spaces to be provided before occupation 
10. Wheel washing 
11. Boundary details 
12. PD removal Classes A and B – plots 1 to 6 and 17 
13. Working hours to be Monday to Friday 0730 to 1800 and 0800 to 

1300 Saturday. No works on Sundays or Public holidays 
 
The planning conditions and s106 agreement for the outline permission 
remain applicable. 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL  
1.1 The application is presented to committee as East Challow Parish 

Council objects to the proposal. 
 

1.2 The application seeks approval of reserved matters following the grant 
of outline planning permission for 38 dwellings on this site. The 
reserved matters are access, appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2502/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

 
1.3 This reserved matters application is not an opportunity to revisit the 

principle of development which is established by the outline 
permission. Surface water and foul water drainage strategies are the 
requirement of planning conditions attached to the outline permission 
and these do not need to be submitted or agreed at this stage. In fact, 
a foul drainage strategy has been agreed following an application 
made for approval of matters reserved by condition (application no. 
P16/V3030/DIS). The outline permission also considered the impact on 
the gap between East Challow and Wantage. 
 

1.4 The proposal is for 38 two-storey dwellings including 13 affordable 
dwellings. Access is proposed from the A417 in the position of an 
existing vehicular access to the site. The layout plan is attached as 
Appendix 1 to this report.  
 

1.5 The application has been amended in seeking to respond to 
observations received. Changes include amendments to the site area 
to accord with the outline permission and ownership of the site, more 
drainage information, changes to the layout including landscaping 
revisions, provision of bin collection points, and access and parking 
changes in response to highway officer observations, a revised 
arboricultural method statement and noise assessment. 
 

1.6 The site location is shown on the plan below. The western part of the 
site was a former depot that has since been cleared. The land falls 
from south to north. Dwellings adjoin part of the western and part of the 
eastern/southern boundary (Greenacre and Challow Park). Open fields 
adjoin the northern and part of the eastern boundaries although part of 
the land to the north and to the north west benefits from outline 
planning permission for up to 88 dwellings (P16/V0652/O and 
P17/V2884/FUL). A footpath bisects the site. 

 

 
 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS AND 
REPRESENTATIONS ON CURRENT SUBMISSION 

2.1 A summary of the responses received to the current submission is 
below.  A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 

East Challow 
Parish Council 

Amended Plans – March 2018 
Object: Their views have not changed. 
 
Amended Plans - January 2018 
Object: 

 Drainage impact on the village network where it is 
considered there are significant capacity issues 

 This development and that at Park Farm intend to 
use the same drainage infrastructure. A previous 
housing development to the west of the village 
identified foul drainage capacity for 50 dwellings. 
Cumulative impacts need to be considered and 
there seems inadequate capacity 

 Affordable housing remains in one enclave away 
from the market housing 

 Danger of losing the footpath which seems to be 
absorbed into the general car parking area. The 
footpath needs to be clearly defined. 

 
Original Plans 
Object: 

 No numerical detail of surface water or foul water 
drainage. Concern flows could overwhelm the 
current system particularly with other 
developments coming forward, built or permitted. 

 Affordable housing is grouped rather than being 
absorbed naturally in to the development 

 The design overwhelms the public footpath 
particularly with the closeness of the dwellings. 
Clear definition is required. 

 

Local residents 
 

Five local residents have written to object. The objections 
and concerns expressed may be summarised as follows: 
 
Amended Plans – March 2018 

 Minimal tree cover on the western boundary which 
will lead to overlooking of Greenacre 

 Affordable housing is still grouped 

 Too much tree and hedge loss which are 
important for wildlife 

 Ash trees should be retained unless they are 
diseased 

Page 13

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

 Public footpath will lose its identity and rural feel. 
The footpath needs to be clearly marked 

 An adjacent house is inaccurately shown on the 
plans 
 

One local resident observes: 

 The red line site boundary plan no longer appears 
to overlap neighbouring land 

 If the western boundary chain link fence is 
removed it should be replaced by a timber fence 

 No mention of a power supply over and beneath 
the site 

 
Amended Plans – January 2018 

 Original comments still apply (see above) 

 Too many 4 and 5 bedroom houses proposed 

 Affordable housing is clustered not spread out 

 Footpath will be enclosed and lose its rural appeal 

 Tree felling has taken place on site including 
removal of some large trees. This looks awful and 
will displace wildlife 

 Right kind of replacement trees and hedges are 
needed not ornamental plants 

 Insufficient parking 
 
Original Plans 

 Access is too close to a bend 

 Speed limits need to be revised. 

 Increased traffic 

 Threatens the current separation between East 
Challow and Wantage 

 Little evidence that public footpaths will be 
preserved 

 Road cutting across the footpath will be 
dangerous 

 Surface water run-off could affect fields further 
north which are already subject to excess run-off 
from the roof of an existing building. A piped 
system may be needed to ensure surface water 
does not flood neighbouring land 

 Surface water run off should not affect land 
beyond the site 

 Challow Park should be connected to the main 
sewer by the developer, as plot 17 is on the septic 
tank 

 Insufficient infrastructure 

 Bungalows should be provided 

 Loss of trees and hedges – more should be 
provided 

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

 Permission will not be given to fell a beech tree 
which is a landmark tree 

 Footway alongside the A417 needs to connect to 
the footway to Wantage 

 Development not needed given the extensive 
house building in and proposed for Grove and 
Wantage 

 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 

No comments received on the current submission 
 
Original Plans 
 
Highways 
Object: 

 Inadequate visitor parking 

 Vision splays of 2.4m x 90m are required  

 The refuse vehicle tracked is too short 

 The exit radius of the access junction should be 
re-designed to provide adequate manoeuvring for 
a refuse vehicle. 

(Planning officer note: The scheme has been amended 
to provide more visitor parking, provide the required 
vision splays and track this council’s refuse vehicle. I 
have reconsulted the highway authority on both sets of 
amendments but have not received responses (the 
consultation has closed). Any further response will be 
reported at the meeting).  
 
Archaeology 
No objection 
There are no archaeological constraints. 
 

Housing team Comments 

 As per the s106 agreement associated with the 
outline permission P16/V1714/O, the site will 
provide 38.5% (5) rent and 61.5% (8) shared 
ownership affordable dwellings. 

 The one-bedroom units should each have a direct 
entrance. 

 Where possible parking courtyards should be 
avoided 

 The affordable housing should be evenly 
distributed across the site and be indistinguishable 
from the market dwellings. 

 

Thames Water Sewerage Infrastructure Capacity 
No objection 
 
Water Comments 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

Insufficient capacity – recommend a condition requiring 
an infrastructure study and mitigation. 
 
I wrote to Thames Water raising the Parish Council’s 
concerns and seeking their response which follows: 
 
“‘Last year Thames Water undertook a catchment wide 
growth investigation for the area served by the Wantage 
Sewage Treatment Works. East Challow comes within 
this catchment boundary and was therefore included 
within the study. The study investigated what impact the 
cumulative future growth in the catchment may have on 
the wastewater network. Both of the developments Park 
Farm and Challow Park were included in this study as 
growth that was anticipated to occur in the East Challow 
area. The investigation identified that with both the 
Challow Park and Park Farm developments in place 
there would be no detriment to the wastewater network 
within East Challow. 
 
In answer to the concern regarding the output of impact 
study X4503-524 SMG 1289, we have recently updated 
our sewer modelling standards for assessing the impact 
of flows due to new development on the sewerage 
network. The updated methodology to assess the impact 
of developer connections on our sewerage networks has 
been in force since the beginning of 2016, whereas this 
previous assessment was undertaken in 2015. We found 
that the Sewer for Adoptions Flow calculation which was 
previously used was suitable to design onsite pipework 
but much too conservative to assess flows reaching our 
networks. Thames Water have therefore brought daily 
consumption rates for dwellings in line with the Part G of 
the Building Regulations (2015) and are using the OS 
Census (2011) on a Local Authority level to assess local 
household population. This allows us to provide a more 
realistic assessment of the potential impact of any new 
development on our networks in order to manage growth 
fairly and efficiently for our new and existing customers. 
The new modelling standard is being used to determine 
the additional capacity that is necessary to avoid flooding 
and pollution as a result of a new development 
connecting to our sewers.” 
 

Drainage 
engineer 
 

Amended Plans – March 2018 
 
No objection 
 

Countryside 
officer 

No objection 
 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

 

Landscape 
officer 

No comments received on the amended schemes. 
 
Original Plans 
Comments 

 Plots 10, 11, 16 plus garages for plots 9 and 10 
are too close to existing trees. 

 Limited tree planting on north and west 
boundaries 

 Tree species north of plot 11 is too small 

 Built form to the western side of the footpath has 
less relationship to the footpath and is located 
closer to the footpath 

 Should be seating in the open spaces 

 No detail of planting methods or management 

 Need details of internal vision splays and street 
lighting as they may impact on landscaping 

 Large trees and additional trees are needed on 
the north and west boundaries 

 Orchard does not allow sufficient space for ball 
games 

 Climbing plants should soften walls 

 Close board fencing is not appropriate on the site 
boundaries 

 Walls are needed on prominent areas 

 Drainage service runs should be realigned to allow 
tree retention 

 No details of the build area for the footpath beside 
the A417 which may affect trees 

 

Forestry Officer Amended Plans – March 2018 
It appears the maturing Ash (T20) and the Norway Maple 
(T27) could be retained without adversely restricting the 
usable garden space to plots 10 and 11, which would 
maintain the integrity of the tree screen when it is viewed 
from outside the site.  The tree protection plan at 
appendix 2 of the tree report should be amended to show 
T20 and T27 retained and the line of the temporary 
fencing extended to safeguard them. 
 
The off-site Beech (T62) is a constraint to the 
development. The tree is in decline. I have met and 
advised the owner of Challow Park as to the liability 
associated with the ownership of the tree.  The tree is 
outside the control of the applicant. The applicant’s 
arboricultural consultant proposes that the tree is 
removed prior to undertaking any ground works or 
construction works in its vicinity.  The removal of the 
Beech would negate the need for a road design to 

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

accommodate the tree roots and the notation on the tree 
protection plan confirms that works in the area around 
the tree would only proceed after the tree has been 
removed/made safe.  If the works are implemented whilst 
the tree is in-situ, a construction method statement will 
need to be submitted and agreed for works within the 
root protection area otherwise the excavation associated 
with the installation of the road and single garage may 
adversely affect the stability of the Beech.   
 
The arboricultural report provides advice as to how the 
removal of the Beech can be secured and one of the 
ways promoted is the use of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  The use of the Act 
allows a district council a discretionary opportunity to 
require a tree owner to make a dangerous tree safe.  It 
does not necessarily result in the removal of the tree but, 
as the tree report alludes to, in this instance the canopy 
could be removed and the stem retained.  The use of the 
Act would be as a last resort as the council could only 
take action if it considers the danger posed by the tree is 
imminent.  In this regard, the condition of the tree is 
acknowledged but the danger posed is currently only to 
the tree owner. Unlike the use of the Miscellaneous 
Provisions, the other options proposed by the 
arboricultural consultant for securing the safety of the 
tree can all be undertaken before development works 
commence.  It should be noted that the commencement 
of the works is very likely to result in the removal of the 
beech tree. 
 

Environmental 
protection team 
(noise) 

No objection. 
The noise assessment has highlighted the need for noise 
mitigation measures for houses facing the A417. Content 
the site is suitable for residential development subject to 
the following condition: 

 Noise mitigation proposals implemented in 
accordance with the submitted noise assessment. 

 

Health and 
Housing 
(air quality) 

Amended Plans – January 2018 
No objection 
Asks that electric vehicle charging points for each market 
property with a garage are provided in an effort to offset 
air quality impacts from the additional traffic associated 
with the development. 
 

Waste 
Management 

Amended Plans – January 2018 
Bin collection points should be provided for plots 8 to 13, 
23 to 25, and 26 to 29 within 25m of the road over which 
the refuse vehicle can pass. 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

(Planning officer note: No comments have been received 
on amended plans which address these points by 
providing bin collection points) 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P16/V3030/DIS - Approved (06/03/2017) 

Discharge of condition 12 on applications P15/V2545/O and 
P16/V1714/O - Foul Drainage Strategy  

 
3.2 P16/V1714/O - Approved (30/09/2016) 

Outline Application with all Matters Reserved for a Residential 
Development of up to 38 Dwellings, including up to 13 Affordable 
Dwellings, with Associated Car Parking and Amenity Space, and On-
Site Public Open Space 

 
3.3 P15/V2545/O - Approved (20/05/2016) 

Outline Application with all Matters Reserved for a Residential 
Development of up to 36 Dwellings, including up to 14 Affordable 
Dwellings, with Associated Car Parking and Amenity Space, and On-
Site Public Open Space. 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
4.1 The site area is less than 5ha and fewer than 150 dwellings are 

proposed. The proposal is not EIA development. 
 

5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main planning considerations relevant to the assessment of this 

application are the reserved matters which are:  
1. Access 
2. Appearance 
3. Landscaping including impacts on trees 
4. Layout 
5. Scale 

 

Access 
5.2 The highway authority has not responded on the amended plans. The 

‘objections’ expressed by the highway authority on previous 
amendments are addressed through revised vision splays to meet 
highway officer expectations and revised refuse vehicle tracking plans 
which show this council’s refuse vehicle can adequately manoeuvre 
into and within the site. 
 

5.3 Eight visitor parking spaces are provided. More could be provided 
although these would erode open spaces and verges. If necessary, a 
condition could be imposed requiring five more visitor parking spaces. 
In this case, this is not considered necessary. This is because at least 
14 dwellings have more than two allocated parking spaces which could 
accommodate visitors to those houses and the overall level of car 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

parking proposed exceeds standards (103 spaces proposed compared 
to 92 required by the standards). 

 

Appearance 
5.4 East Challow comprises an eclectic mix of house types and designs; 

there is no set pattern of dwelling form. Adjacent to the site are two 
large dwellings of rectangular form under pitched roofs with external 
walls finished in painted render, red/brown brick and tile hanging under 
tiled roofs. The Design Guide 2015 expects the form and massing of 
new development to be kept simple with a rectangular floor plan and 
pitched roof. It does allow more complex forms such as ‘L’ shaped 
buildings. 
 

5.5 The proposed dwellings comply with the Design Guide in having simple 
forms with rectangular floor plans, pitched roofs and balanced 
elevations. Some ‘L’ shaped dwellings are provided to turn corners with 
side windows providing surveillance of side roads and open spaces. 
The proposals accord with Design Guide principles DG52 and DG53. 
 

5.6 Materials are mainly red/brown bricks with occasional rendered walls 
under pitched slate or tiled roofs. The appearance of the dwellings is 
considered to respond positively to the Design Guide and general 
forms of dwellings and materials used in the village. 
 

Landscaping 
5.7 Most trees on/beyond the western boundary shown on the 

arboricultural plan and plans do not exist. Scope exists for planting on 
the western boundary to assist in reducing overlooking of Greenacre. 
Likewise, new hedge and tree planting can be provided against the 
northern boundary of Challow Park to minimise overlooking and secure 
the boundary. A planning condition on the outline permission requires 
an orchard to be planted. The location of this has been revised since 
the original scheme. The orchard is no longer over the ‘crated’ surface 
water storage scheme and now allows a larger area of open space for 
ball games. The landscaping scheme submitted with the proposal is 
therefore, not approved. A condition is recommended to secure a 
landscaping scheme. 
 
Trees 

5.8 Nine leylandii trees are lost in the north western part of the site to 
accommodate gardens. Their loss is not considered detrimental to the 
character of the area and their loss was envisaged at outline 
application stage. Deciduous trees on the north west boundary are 
largely retained. An ash tree and Norway maple which are in good 
condition (shown as T20 and T27 in the submitted arboricultural report) 
should be retained and this can be part of the landscaping scheme to 
be secured by planning condition 3. 
 

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

5.9 The hedge beside the footpath comprises mainly ivy clinging to the 
fence on the east side and a thicket of brambles on the west side. Their 
loss is reasonable. 
 

5.10 A beech tree exists in the grounds of Challow Park and close to but 
outside the site boundary. This tree is not subject to a preservation 
order. It is in decline with extensive decay. The applicant’s 
arboriculturalist considers the beech tree as imminently dangerous, 
and proposes it is removed by either: 

o “securing co-operation of the tree owners 
o by contacting the 3rd party property owners insurance company 
o by use of The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 

Act1976 Sections 23 and 24 [Dangerous Trees] 
o or use of an injunction” (paragraph 2.13 of the submitted 

arboricultural method statement) 
 
5.11 The owner of the beech tree is reluctant to fell it. There is a risk that if 

the beech tree is retained it could fall or drop limbs that could be a 
danger to future occupants and users of the development site. I note 
that the arboricultural method statement advises development around 
the tree will not be undertaken until it is removed or made safe. The 
beech tree is attractive with visual merit albeit the contribution to the 
verdant appearance of the area is constrained due to trees on the 
northern road side of the A417. The council’s forestry officer points out 
that commencing this development is very likely to result in the removal 
of the beech tree.  
 

5.12 Loss of the beech tree in the public realm would not be unreasonable. I 
acknowledge the land owner will disagree, and I am certain the tree is 
of significant attraction to his living conditions. Little weight can be 
given to protecting private interests, as planning is concerned with land 
use in the public interest. I am mindful that in both outline permissions 
for up to 36 and then up to 38 dwellings the applicant’s arboriculturalist 
had recommended reducing the beech tree to a standing trunk or its 
removal. In February 2016, the council’s forestry officer advised in 
connection with the 36 dwelling scheme that he agreed with the 
arboricultural assessment and that the beech tree should be removed 
and replaced prior to any development occurring in the vicinity. In his 
original comments on this reserved matters application the forestry 
officer advised the declining condition of the tree is such that the work 
recommended in the original tree survey should be implemented but, if 
the tree owner maintains his stance on retaining the tree, work within 
its root protection area will need to be managed by means of 
adherence to an agreed arboricultural method statement. Taking 
account of the site history, short term life expectancy of the beech tree 
and its contribution to the public realm, I conclude loss of the beech 
tree would not be unreasonable. Should the beech tree remain a 
condition is included to require an arboricultural method statement for 
work within the root area (condition 6) 

 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

Layout 
Affordable housing and housing mix 

5.13 The affordable housing percentage, tenure mix and unit size mix plus  
the market housing unit size mix are set in the s106 agreement 
accompanying the outline permission.  
 

5.14 The affordable housing percentage is 35% and the tenure mix is 38.5%  
affordable rented and 61.5% shared ownership. The affordable housing 
unit size mix in the s106 agreement and proposed is: 
 

 1-bed 2-bed 3 -be (5 
person) 

Affordable 
rent 

2 2 1 

Shared 
ownership 

0 4 4 

 
5.15 The Parish Council is concerned that the affordable housing is in one 

enclave away from the market dwellings. The s106 agreement requires 
the affordable housing to be in clusters of no more than 13 dwellings. 
The affordable housing comprises a cluster of 13 dwellings and 
therefore, accords with the s106 agreement. This cluster is relatively 
centrally located in the site with proposed market housing adjacent to 
the north, east and west. It is not away from the market dwellings and 
the location accords with the parameters set at outline stage. 
 

5.16 The market housing unit size mix agreed in the s106 accompanying the 
outline permission and proposed is: 
 

No of beds 1 2 3 4+ 

Proposed 0 4 6 15 

 
Layout 

5.17 A condition on the outline permission expects the layout to follow that 
illustrated as part of that application. The proposed layout responds to 
the pattern of development illustrated at outline stage although 
changes have been made in response to observations made on this 
application. There is a single access road with some private driveways 
leading from it. Dwellings back on to existing boundaries with the 
exception of the footpath. Dwellings face on to the footpath with its line 
retained through the development and separated from roads. However, 
it is unavoidable in developing the eastern part of the site that the main 
access road crosses the footpath. 
 

5.18 Dwellings, tree and hedge planting could be provided to front the 
roads. Parking is largely set to the sides of dwellings although there is 
a single area of overlooked courtyard parking. Parking does not 
dominate the streets. Dwellings turn corners by providing windows on 
the two street elevations. Other dwellings create focal points and visual 
stops. This provides continuity, enclosure, legibility and landmarks. 

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

Dwellings front open spaces providing passive surveillance. Open 
spaces and play areas exceed the 15% open space expected by saved 
policy H23 of the Local Plan 2011. The proposal accords with 
principles DG27, 28, 29, 31, 33 and 39 of the Design Guide, core 
policies 37 and 38 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and policy H23 of the 
Local Plan 2011. 

 
Residential Amenity 

5.19 The Design Guide recommends a minimum distance of 21m between 
facing habitable windows to prevent unreasonable overlooking. All 
proposed dwellings are at least 21m from habitable room windows in 
the house called Challow Park and the new dwelling being constructed 
in its grounds. Challow Park has a large featureless wall of a 
studio/recital hall building close to the east boundary of the site. This 
restricts overlooking of the grounds. An implement shed will restrict 
some overlooking from plot 17 of the grounds of the new house being 
built in the grounds of Challow Park, as will the lower level of plot 17.  
 

5.20 Greenacre has a bathroom window at first floor, a door and two 
windows to a sitting room at ground floor in its east elevation facing the 
site. The bathroom is not a habitable room. Plots 2 and 3 face the side 
elevation and are approximately 20.5m from the side elevation of 
Greenacre. In addition, plots 2, 5 and 6 have potential to overlook the 
gardens of Greenacre from a distance of some 9 to 10m. Removal of 
permitted development rights can control future alterations to ensure 
overlooking is not made unreasonable. Fencing and planting on the 
boundary particularly new trees can break views into the garden and 
limit overlooking. 

 
5.21 Initially the submitted plans included the site boundary extending 

further west than shown on the outline permission plans but this has 
now been revised to accord with the outline permission. There is some 
dispute as to the location of the western boundary of the site but this is 
not a planning matter, as the site boundary accords with the outline 
permission.  
 

5.22 With the proposed conditions the proposal complies with saved policy 
DC9 of the Local Plan 2011. 

 
Scale 

5.23 Scale relates to the height, width and length of each building proposed 
within the development in relation to its surroundings. Neighbouring 
dwellings are substantial in terms of footprint with heights of 
approximately 9m to 10m. The proposed dwellings have heights that 
vary from approximately 8.2m to 10m. Lengths and widths of the 
dwellings also vary from some 6.5m to 9m wide. The scale of the 
dwellings is consistent with the variations in heights, widths and lengths 
of dwellings on adjacent sites and within the village. 

 
 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 18 April 2018 

 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 This application has been considered in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
  

6.2 The affordable housing mix and grouping accords with the outline 
permission and as set by the s106 agreement accompanying the 
permission and which remains applicable. 
 

6.3 The drainage consultees confirm the drainage details are acceptable. 
This authority has approved foul water drainage details and having 
raised Parish Council concerns with Thames Water they confirm there 
is adequate capacity. 

 
6.4 The access arrangements, appearance, layout and scale of 

development are all considered reasonable and to accord with Design 
Guidance and adopted policy. The landscaping for the western 
boundary needs to be improved and it is considered additional trees 
could be retained towards the north western boundary of the site.  
Conditions require the submission of a landscaping scheme and its 
implementation. 
 

6.5 It is therefore, recommended that this proposal is approved. 
 
The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
 
VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031: PART 1 – CORE POLICIES 1, 
2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 15, 17, 22, 23, 24, 33, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46  
 
VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2011 – SAVED POLICIES DC3, 
DC4, DC5, DC6, DC7, H23, HE9, HE10, NE9 and NE10 
 
DRAFT VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031 PART 2 –AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 2, 16, 21, 23, 25, 28, 31 and 33 
 
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK  
 
PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE 
 
 
Case Officer – Adrian Butler 
Email – adrian.butler@southandvale.gov.uk 
Tel – (01235) 422600 

Page 24



2

1

Challow Park

Challow Park Cottages

Greenacre

Fh

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

Checked

Drawing Issue Status

Date of 1st Issue

Drawing Number

Designed

Revision

DrawnMark Revision ChkdDate

File Location: \\pba.int\edi\projects\40830 east challow\drawings\cad\dwgs\wip\40830-2503-001.dwg

UTILITIES NOTE: The position of any existing public or private sewers, utility services, plant or apparatus shown on this

drawing is believed to be correct, but no warranty to this is expressed or implied.  Other such plant or apparatus may also

be present but not shown.  The Contractor is therefore advised to undertake his own investigation where the presence of

any existing sewers, services, plant or apparatus may affect his operations.

SCALING NOTE:  Do not scale from this drawing.  If in doubt, ask.

user name: gil dalton

Offices throughout
the UK and Europe

©  Peter Brett Associates LLP
www.peterbrett.com

EDINBURGH
Tel:  0131 220 1414

Approved

Appd

Drawn

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CHALLOW ROAD, EAST CHALLOW

LOCATION PLAN

MACTAGGART &

MICKEL

PLANNING

40830/2503/001 A

04.09.2017

1:2000

GD GD

DM -

A RED LINE BOUNDARY REVISED 02.03.18 GD JS JS

Client

A3 Scale

DENOTES SITE BOUNDARY

Appendix 1

P
age 25

//pba.int/Install/AutoDesk/CAD Library/BORDERS/README_PBA BORDERS - DWG A0-A4.txt
//pba.int/Install/AutoDesk/CAD Library/BORDERS/README_PBA BORDERS - DWG A0-A4.txt


01

02

19

06

14

23

24

15

18

04

05

03

10

12

13

16

20

21

17

22

25

Hard standing collection area for bins.

(Residents to move bins to collection

area on specified collection days).

T

Y

P

E

 

K

18

21

22

19

23

24

06

25

09

07

11

T

Y

P

E

 

H

T

Y

P

E

 
A

3

T

Y

P

E

 

H

T

Y

P

E

 

A

3

T

Y

P

E

 

J

13

T

Y

P

E

 

K

1

T

Y

P

E

 

J

T

Y

P

E

 

H

T

Y

P

E

 

C

1

T

Y

P

E

 

H

T

Y

P

E

 

J

T

Y

P

E

 

A

2

T

Y

P

E

 

K

T

Y

P

E

 
A

3

V

V

V

20

V

T

Y

P

E

 

K

1

T

Y

P

E

 

C

1

T

Y

P

E

 

K

C

 

H

 

A

 

L

 

L

 

O

 

W

 

 

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

T

Y

P

E

 

J

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Ch.

Greenacre

Challow Park

Challow Park Cottages

P.O.S

P.O.S

Bin store for Plots 34

& 35 under flyover

Bin store for Plots

37 & 38

T

Y

P

E

 

J

T

Y

P

E

 

C

3

.

5

T

Y

P

E

 

C

1

07

T

Y

P

E

 

K

1

T

Y

P

E

 

A

2

T

Y

P

E

A

3

V

V

08

08

09

09

10

12

11

Ch.

28

38

30

27

34-35

32

33

36

29

31

26

37

T

Y

P

E

 

G

33

36

T

Y

P

E

 

G

T

Y

P

E

 

G

T

Y

P

E

 
G

T

Y

P

E

 
G

T

Y

P

E

 

M

1

T

Y

P

E

 

M

2

T

Y

P

E

 

F

T

Y

P

E

 

F

T

Y

P

E

 

F

T

Y

P

E

 

F

T

Y

P

E

 

F

T

Y

P

E

 

F

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

38

37

37

38

V

V

34

35

V

V

Bin store for

Plots  37 & 38

2

.

0

8

Indicative location of seating

within POS

Ch.

1

3

.

5

2

*

*

*

*

*

*

Ch.

Fh

Post

Post

Post

Post

Bdy

Bdy

Bdy

Bdy

Bdy

Bdy

Bdy

BT

BT

BT

2

1

.

3

1

1

6

.

1

8

8

.

2

8

1

2

.

2

9

1. Illustrative ramp arrangement subject to building levels confirmation

and Landscape Architect proposals.

2. Location of Affordable Rent & Shared Ownership Units denoted as:

3. Existing adjacent structures:

4. See Engineers drawings for drainage details.

5. Location of Chimneys denotes as:

6. Existing Trees & Root Protection Zone (Blue Dashed Line)

7. Proposed Trees (Refer to FPCR Planting Plans for details).

8. Enhanced Window Specification, as per the Acousticians

recommendations, i.e. upgraded double glazed specification

and acoustic ventilators.

Ch.

Station Easti

AJB1      438117.4

AJB2      438028.9

C1      438248.6

C2      438339.8

C3      438403.1

C4      438438.0

C5      438501.4

C6      438551.9

C7      438620.6

C8      438405.5

C9      438376.6

C10      438373.0

C11      438437.3

C12      438423.9

C13      438426.7

T6      438058.7

T100      438073.9

T101      438138.4

*

C

notes:

N

T: +44 (0)24 7652 7600   E:info@idpgroup.com

www.weareidp.com

name:comment(s):

PROJECT MANAGERS.

rev: date: check:

URBAN DESIGNERS.

WE ARE IDP.

ARCHITECTS.

IDP GROUP  27 SPON STREET  COVENTRY  CV1 3BA

PLANNERS.

status: RIBA Stage:

RE 29.08.17

TKB 1:500

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS.

drawn:

Site Layout

job: East Challow

client: Mactaggart and Mickel

checked:

date:

scale @ a1:

title:

job no: C3297 drg no:

PLANNING

1

this drawing and the building works depicted are the copyright of idp  and may

not be reproduced or amended except by written permission. no liability will be

accepted for amendments made by other persons.

all dimensions to be checked on site and architect notified of any

discrepancies prior to commencement.

do not scale.

0 5 10 20 30 40

metresscale 1:500

PL 105 C

Amended to Planning Comments - Plots 01-11, 29 & 33

revised. Affordable units tenure denoted. Visitor parking

revised and apdoptable road revised accordingly.

Private Drives re-aligned & refuse collection area

amended, Mix in accordance with D.O.V 06.03.17.

Seating added to POS & boundaries treatments

developed. Enhanced window spec denoted in

accordance with acoustic report REA 18.01.2018 BF

Type F revised to comply with

D.O.V 06.03.17.

REB 23.01.2018 BF

Refuse collection areas added. Plot boundaries to plots

26, 32, 33 & 36 revised. Site boundary revised to match

outline application boundary.
REC 01.03.2018

P
age 26


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 P17/V2502/RM - Land at Challow Park East Challow, Wantage. OX12 9RH
	P17/V2502/RM - Land at Challow Park East Challow, Wantage. OX12 9RH - appendices
	Location Plan drwgno 40830-2503-001 Rev A
	Sheets and Views
	40830-2503-001 Location Plan


	Site Layout drwgno C3297 PL 105 C
	Sheets and Views
	C3297 PL100-PL105







